

Philippine COVID-19 Living Recommendations

As of 16 March 2021

By:



Institute of Clinical Epidemiology, National Institutes of Health, UP Manila

In cooperation with:

Philippine Society for Microbiology and Infectious Diseases



Funded by:

DOH AHEAD Program through the DOST-PCHRD

the DOST-PCHRD

ge as newer evidence

IMPORTANT NOTICE: These living recommendations may change as newer evidence are released in the medical literature. It is critical that you take note of the date when the evidence was last reviewed. Additional recommendations may have to be added as needed.

Contents

STEERING COMMITTEE	
CONSENSUS PANEL	5
Treatment	θ
Screening and Diagnosis	θ
Critical Care and Respiratory Management	θ
Vaccines and Prophylactic Interventions	
Non-Pharmacologic Interventions	7
Adjunct Interventions	
Evidence Review Experts	8
Project Staff	8
Living Recommendations on Screening and Diagnosis of COVID-19	10
14-day Symptom-based Test	10
Clinical Specimen	10
Rapid Antigen Tests	10
Pooled Testing using RT-PCR	11
Repeat Testing using RT-PCR	11
Living Recommendations for the Treatment of COVID-19	12
Hydroxychloroquine/Chloroquine	12
Azithromycin	12
lvermectin	12
Favipiravir	12
Remdesivir	12
Tocilizumab	12
Convalescent Plasma	13
lbuprofen	13
Virgin Coconut Oil	13
Linhua	13
Living Recommendations for the Critical Care and Respiratory Management of	
Systemic Corticosteroids	14
Anticoagulation	14
Hemoperfusion	14
Fluid Management	14
Proning in Non-Intubated Patients	14

High Flow Nasal Cannula	14
Mechanical Ventilation	15
Living Recommendations on Non-Pharmacologic Interventions for COVID-19	916
Cloth Masks	16
Ionizing Air Filter	16
Foot Baths	16
Misting Tents	16
Ultraviolet (UV) Lamps	16
High Efficiency Particulate Air (HEPA) Filter	16
N95 Decontamination Techniques	17
Living Recommendations on Vaccines and Prophylactic Interventions for CC)VID-1918
Vaccines	18
Melatonin	18
Vitamin D	18
Zinc	19
Hydroxychloroquine/Chloroquine	19
Lopinavir/Ritonavir	19
Saline Nasal Irrigation	19
Steam Inhalation	19
Antiseptic Gargles	19
Living Recommendations on Adjunct Interventions for COVID-19	20
Zinc	20
Vitamin C	20
Vitamin D	20
Melatonin	20
Virgin Coconut Oil	20
N-acetylcysteine	20
Renin-Angiotensin-Aldosterone System Blockers (RAAS)	20
lbuprofen	20

STEERING COMMITTEE















Jemelyn U. Garcia. MD, FPCP, FPSMID

Evalyn A. Roxas, MD, MPH, FPCP, FPSMID

Mario M. Panaligan, MD, FPCP, FACP, FPSMID, FIDSA

Noel L. Espallardo, MD, MSc, FPAFP

Ivan N. Villespin, MD, FPCP, FPCCP

Aileen R. Espina, MD, MPH, MHA, FPAFP

Maria Rosario S. Vergeire, MD, MPH, CESO IV

Marissa M. Alejandria, MD, MSc, FPCP, FPSMID (Chair)
Leonila Dans, MD, MSc, FPPS, FPRA (Co-Chair)

CONSENSUS PANEL









































Screening and Diagnosis

Treatment

Clemencia D. Bon	doc. MD
------------------	---------

Alpha Grace B. Cabic, MD, DPSP

Jocelyn Myra R. Caja, MD, FPSP

Virgina de los Reyes, MD

Mary Ann D. Lansang, MD, FPCP, FPSMID

Jane Eflyn L. Lardizabal-Bunyi, RPh, MD,

OHP, DFM, FPAFP, CSPSH

Imelda B. Mateo, MD, MBAH, FPCP, FPCCP

Vernon M. Serafico, MD, FPCP

Maria Elinore Alba-Concha, MD, FPAFP

Mary Ann C. Bunyi, MD, FPPS, FPIDSP

Erwin R. De Mesa, MD, FPOGS, FPIDSOG

Karl Evans R. Henson, MD, FPCP, FPSMID

Faith Joan C. Mesa-Gaerlan, MD, MS, FPCEM

Roland M. Panaligan, MD, LLM, FPCP, FPCCP

Rommel B. Punongbayan, RMT, MD, MBA, FPCP,

FPSMS, CSPSH, DPCOM

Iris Conela A. Tagaro, MD, DPPS, MPM-MHSD

Critical Care and Respiratory Management

Joseph Adrian L. Buensalido, MD, FPCP, FPSMID

Pauline F. Convocar, MD, MCHM, DPBEM, FPCEM, DPCOM

Ricardo A. Francisco, Jr, MD, MHA, FPCP, FPSN

Mark Kristoffer U. Pasayan, MD, FPCP, FPSMID

Chito C. Permejo, MD, FPCP, FPCC, FPSCCM

Albert L. Rafanan, MD, FPCCP, FPCP, FCCP, FASSM, FPSSM

Rowena Marie T. Samares, MD, FPAFP, FPSHPM

Paul Michael S. Tan, RN, MAN, PhD

Non-Pharmacologic Interventions

Regina P. Berba, MD, MSc, FPCP, FPSMID

Vivien Fe F. Fadrilan-Camacho, MD, MPH, FPAFP

Rodley Desmond Daniel M. Carza, MPH, RN

Dominga Calalang-Gomez, RN

Anna Sofia Victoria S. Fajardo, MD, MBAH,

DPCOM

Victoria Isla-Ching, RN, MGM-ESP

Nenacia Ranali Nirena P. Mendoza, MD, FPAFP

Ruth S. Punzalan, MD, MPH, FPAFP

Vaccines and Prophylactic Interventions

Maria Rhona G. Bergantin, MD, MSc, FPCP, FPSMID

Fatima Ignacio Gimenez, MD, FPPS, FPIDSP

Dax Ronald O. Librado, MD, FPCP, FACP

Anna Guia O. Limpoco, MD, MsCM, FPAFP

Edmyr M. Macabulos, M.D., MPH, FPCOM

Rosally P. Zamora, MD, FPCP

Gian Carlo Torres, PhD, MAN, RN

Katrina Descartin, MD, MS, MPH, DIMPH, RSPH

Adjunct Interventions

Anthony F. Cortez, MD

Katrina G. Gomez-Chua, MD MPH

Ana Melissa S. Guererro, MD, MPH (HTA)

Joan Mae M. Oliveros, MD, FPAFP

Maria Sonia Salamat, MD, MPH, FPCP, FPSMID

Julie Christie Gutierrez Visperas, MD, MHPEd, FPCP, FPCCP

Shirley P. Whisenhunt DNM, RN

Evidence Review Experts

Eva I. Bautista, MD, MSc, FPPS

John Jefferson V. Besa, MD

Julian M. A. Buban

Aldrich Ivan Lois D. Burog, MD, MSc (cand.)

Ian Theodore Cabaluna, RPh, MD, GDip (Epi)

Marie Gene D. Cruz, MD

Patricia Maria Gregoria M. Cuaño, MD

Lea Roselle O. De Castro, MD

Namnama P. Villarta-De Dios, MD, MSc, DPPS

Belen L. Dofitas, MD, MSc

Valentin C. Dones III, PhD

Gina Antonina S. Eubanas, MD, FPDS, D Clin Epi

Antonio L. Faltado Jr., MD, FPCP, FPSEDM

Anna Maria Vida P. Garcia, RPh, D Clin Epi

Rowena F. Genuino, MD, MSc

Germana Emerita V. Gregorio, MD, PhD

Myzelle Anne J. Infantado, PTRP, MSc (cand.)

Racquel Ibanez, MD, FPCP, DPCCP

Marquis Von Angelo Syquio Go Joson, MD

Anna Angelica Macalalad Josue, MD, FPCP,

DPSEDM, MSc (cand)

Marie Carmela Lapitan, MD, FPUA, FPCS

Christopher G. Manalo, MD, DPBEM

Patricia Pauline M. Remalante, MD, FPCP, DPRA

Evelyn O. Salido, MD, FPCP, FPRA

Maria Cristina Z. San Jose, MD, FPNA

Maria Vanessa V. Sulit, BSN, RN, MSc

Frangelo Conrad Tampus, MD

Cary Amiel G. Villanueva, MD

Paoline Nicole P. Villanueva, RMT, MD

Project Staff

Project Manager

Dan Louie Renz P. Tating, MS(cand), RN

Technical Coordinators

Howell Henrian G Bayona, MSc, CSP-PASP Maria Teresa S. Tolosa, MD, FPDS, D Clin Epi Dan Louie Renz P. Tating, MS(cand), RN

Technical Writers Kate D. Dunlao, RPh Joyce Anne Ceria-Pereña, RPh, MPM Mikarla M. Lubat, RND

Project Staff Maria Eleanor L. Candelaria, MPH, RN Kate D. Dunlao, RPh

Living Recommendations on Screening and Diagnosis of COVID-19

14-day Symptom-based Test

Should the 14-day symptom-based test be used in screening for COVID-19 infection in apparently healthy adults?

We suggest an initial screening for COVID-19 by checking for any influenza-like illness symptom within the past 14 days in apparently healthy adults. (Low quality of evidence; Conditional recommendation)

Clinical Specimen

Which clinical specimen can be used as an alternative for the diagnosis of COVID-19?

We recommend the use of oropharyngeal swab as an alternative clinical specimen to nasopharyngeal swab RT-PCR for the diagnosis of COVID-19. (Moderate quality of evidence; Strong recommendation)

We recommend the use of saliva drool/spit and oral saliva specimens as an alternative to nasopharyngeal swab for RT-PCR diagnosis of COVID-19 in symptomatic and asymptomatic patients with suspected COVID-19 in hospital and community/outpatient settings. (Moderate quality of evidence; Strong recommendation)

We suggest the use of saliva swab and posterior oropharyngeal saliva specimens as an alternative for RT-PCR diagnosis of COVID-19 in symptomatic and asymptomatic patients with suspected COVID-19 in hospital and community/outpatient settings. (Low quality of evidence; Conditional recommendation)

We recommend the use of nasal swab/wash as an alternative clinical specimen to nasopharyngeal swab RT-PCR for the diagnosis of COVID-19. (*Moderate quality of evidence; Strong recommendation*)

We recommend the use of throat swab as an alternative clinical specimen to nasopharyngeal swab RT-PCR for the diagnosis of COVID-19. (Low quality of evidence; Strong recommendation)

We recommend against the use of sputum as an alternative clinical specimen to nasopharyngeal swab RT-PCR for the diagnosis of COVID-19. (*Very low quality of evidence; Strong recommendation*)

There is no evidence to recommend the use of bronchoalveolar lavage as an alternative clinical specimen to nasopharyngeal swab RT-PCR for the diagnosis of COVID-19.

Rapid Antigen Tests

Should rapid antigen tests be used in the diagnosis of COVID-19 in clinically suspected patients?

We recommend against the use of rapid antigen test alone in diagnosing COVID-19 in asymptomatic patients suspected of COVID-19 infection. (Moderate to high quality of evidence; Strong recommendation)

We recommend the use of rapid antigen test under all these conditions in patients suspected of COVID-19 infection: (Moderate quality of evidence; Strong recommendation)

- Symptomatic AND
- Early phase </=7 days from onset of symptoms AND
- Specific brands that demonstrated sensitivity $\geq 80\%$ and have very high specificity ($\geq 97-100\%$))

We recommend against the use of saliva as specimen for rapid antigen test in patients suspected of COVID-19 infection. (Moderate quality of evidence; Strong recommendation)

Pooled Testing using RT-PCR

Should pooled testing using RT-PCR for SARS-CoV-2, versus individual testing using RT-PCR, be used for screening and surveillance for SARS-CoV-2 in patients with suspected COVID-19 infection?

We suggest the use of pooled RT-PCR testing in targeted* low-risk and low-prevalence populations using a pool size of 5 in individuals suspected of COVID-19 infection. (Moderate quality of evidence; Conditional recommendation)

Repeat Testing using RT-PCR

Should repeat RT-PCR testing after an initial negative RT-PCR versus single RT-PCR testing be done to diagnose COVID-19 in symptomatic patients with high index of suspicion?

We suggest to repeat RT-PCR testing when the initial RT-PCR test is negative among symptomatic patients with high index of suspicion for COVID-19 infection. (Low quality of evidence; Conditional recommendation)

^{*}Target population refer to the list of PSP and DOH

Living Recommendations for the Treatment of COVID-19

Hydroxychloroquine/Chloroquine

Should hydroxychloroquine/ chloroquine, with or without azithromycin be used in the treatment of patients with COVID-19 infection?

We recommend against the use of hydroxychloroquine/chloroquine, with or without azithromycin among patients with COVID-19 infection. (Moderate quality of evidence; Strong recommendation)

Azithromycin

Should azithromycin be used in the treatment of patients with COVID-19 infection?

We recommend against the use of azithromycin among patients with COVID-19 infection. *(Moderate quality of evidence; Strong recommendation)*

Ivermectin

Should ivermectin be used in the treatment of patients with COVID-19 infection?

There is insufficient evidence to recommend the use of ivermectin for the treatment of patients with COVID-19 infection. (*Very low quality of evidence*)

Favipiravir

Should favipiravir be used in the treatment of patients with COVID-19 infection?

There is insufficient evidence to recommend the use of favipiravir for the treatment of patients with COVID-19. (Very low quality of evidence)

Remdesivir

Should remdesivir be used in the treatment of patients with COVID-19 infection?

We suggest against the use of remdesivir in patients with COVID-19 infection who have O2 saturation ≥94% and do not require oxygen supplementation. (Low quality of evidence; Conditional recommendation)

We suggest the addition of remdesivir to dexamethasone in patients with COVID-19 infection who have 02 saturation < 94% and/or requiring oxygen supplementation. (Low quality of evidence; Conditional recommendation)

There is insufficient evidence for or against the use of remdesivir in patients with COVID-19 infection who are already on high flow oxygen, non invasive or invasive mechanical ventilation. (Low quality of evidence)

Tocilizumab

Should tocilizumab be used in the treatment of patients with COVID-19 infection?

We recommend the addition of tocilizumab to systemic steroids in patients showing rapid respiratory deterioration and/or requiring high doses of oxygen (high-flow nasal cannula, noninvasive or invasive mechanical ventilation) and with elevated biomarkers of inflammation (CRP). (Moderate quality of evidence; Strong recommendation)

We recommend against the use of tocilizumab in patients with COVID-19 infection who do not require oxygen supplementation. (Strong recommendation)

Convalescent Plasma

Should convalescent plasma be used in the treatment of patients with COVID-19 infection?

We recommend against the use of convalescent plasma in patients with COVID-19 infection regardless of severity. (Moderate quality of evidence; Strong recommendation)

Ibuprofen

Should ibuprofen be used in the treatment of patients with COVID-19 infection?

We recommend against the use of ibuprofen as treatment among patients with COVID-19 infection. (Very low quality of evidence; Strong recommendation)

Virgin Coconut Oil

Should virgin coconut oil (VCO) be used in the treatment of patients with COVID-19 infection?

There is no evidence to recommend the use of VCO as treatment among patients with COVID-19 infection.

Linhua

Should Linhua be used in the treatment of patients with COVID-19 infection?

We recommend against the use of Linhua as treatment among patients with COVID-19 infection. (Very low quality of evidence; Strong recommendation)

Living Recommendations for the Critical Care and Respiratory Management of COVID-19

Systemic Corticosteroids

Should systemic corticosteroids be used in patients with COVID-19 infection?

We recommend the use of dexamethasone in patients with COVID-19 infection who require supplemental oxygenation (i.e., including high-flow device, non-invasive, invasive mechanical ventilation and ECMO). (High quality of evidence; Strong recommendation)

We recommend against the use of systemic corticosteroids among patients with COVID-19 infection who do not require oxygen supplementation. (*Moderate to high quality of evidence; Strong recommendation*)

Anticoagulation

Should anticoagulation be used in treating patients diagnosed with COVID-19 infection?

We suggest the use of prophylactic anticoagulation among hospitalized patients with COVID-19 infection, unless with contraindications. (Very low quality of evidence; Conditional recommendation)

We suggest the use of prophylactic dose anticoagulation over therapeutic anticoagulation in critically ill patients with COVID-19 infection. (Low quality of evidence; Conditional recommendation)

Hemoperfusion

Should hemoperfusion be used in patients with COVID-19 infection?

There is insufficient evidence on the use of hemoperfusion at this time among patients with COVID-19 infection. (*Very low quality of evidence*)

Fluid Management

Should a conservative fluid management strategy be used in mechanically ventilated adult COVID-19 patients? We suggest the use of conservative fluid management over liberal fluid management strategy in mechanically ventilated adult COVID-19 patients with acute respiratory distress syndrome who are adequately resuscitated*. (Low quality of evidence; Conditional recommendation)

Proning in Non-Intubated Patients

Should proning be used in non-intubated patients with COVID-19 infection?

We suggest self-proning to improve oxygenation status of non-intubated hospitalized patients with COVID-19 infection requiring oxygen supplementation. (*Very low quality of evidence; Conditional recommendation*)

High Flow Nasal Cannula

Should high flow nasal cannula be used in patients with COVID-19 infection?

We suggest the use of high-flow nasal cannula oxygenation over non-invasive ventilation (e.g., helmet CPAP, mask NIV) in patients with COVID-19 infection and acute hypoxemic respiratory failure who do not respond to conventional oxygen therapy. (*Very low quality of evidence; Conditional recommendation*)

^{*}without tissue hypoperfusion and fluid responsiveness

Mechanical Ventilation

Should lung protective ventilation, high PEEP and driving pressure-limited strategies be used in the management of adult patients with COVID-19-associated acute respiratory distress syndrome? We suggest the use of a lung protective ventilation strategy (tidal volume 4-8 mL/kg predicted body weight and plateau pressure less than 30 cmH20 in patients with COVID-19 infection and ARDS. (Very low quality of evidence; Conditional recommendation)

There is insufficient evidence to recommend the use of a higher PEEP strategy. We suggest to individualize PEEP or employ a PEEP strategy on respiratory mechanics (i.e., compliance) in patients with COVID-19 infection. (Low quality of evidence; Conditional recommendation)

There is insufficient evidence to recommend a driving pressure limited strategy in patients with COVID-19 infection. We suggest to keep the driving pressure \leq 14 cmH20. (Low quality of evidence; Conditional recommendation)

Living Recommendations on Non-Pharmacologic Interventions for COVID-19

Cloth Masks

Should cloth masks be used in the prevention and control of COVID-19 infection?

We recommend that healthcare workers not directly taking care of COVID-19 patients, and other persons with high risk of exposure to COVID-19 should use properly fitted surgical masks instead of cloth masks. (Moderate quality of evidence; Strong recommendation)

We suggest using a cloth mask that fits snugly on the face and made of at least two layers of cotton (e.g., t-shirt fabric) or non-woven nylon with aluminum nose bridge by the general public with low risk of exposure to COVID-19 in outdoor or indoor areas to prevent COVID-19 infections (Low quality of evidence; Conditional recommendation)

Ionizing Air Filter

Should ionizing air filter be used in the prevention and control of COVID-19 infection in public spaces with sustained community transmission?

We recommend against the use of ionizing air purifier to reduce COVID-19 transmission in the community. (Low quality of evidence; Strong recommendation)

Foot Baths

Should foot baths be used in the prevention and control of COVID-19 infection?

We recommend against the use of footbaths for the prevention and control of COVID-19 transmission. (Very low quality of evidence; Strong recommendation)

Misting Tents

Should misting tents or disinfection chambers be used in preventing and controlling COVID-19 transmission?

We recommend against the use of misting tents or disinfection chambers for preventing and controlling COVID-19 transmission. (*Very low quality of evidence; Strong recommendation*)

Ultraviolet (UV) Lamps

Should ultraviolet (UV) lamps be used in the prevention and control of COVID-19 infection in public spaces in locations with sustained community transmission?

We recommend against the use of UV lamps or other UV devices in any place outside of a controlled clinic or hospital setting to prevent and control COVID-19 transmission. (Low quality of evidence; Strong recommendation)

High Efficiency Particulate Air (HEPA) Filter

Should high efficiency particulate air (HEPA) filters be used in the prevention and control of COVID-19 infection in public spaces and locations with sustained community transmission?

We suggest the use of HEPA filter as an option to improve air quality for COVID-19 prevention and control in indoor spaces with inadequate ventilation. (Low quality of evidence; Conditional recommendation)

N95 Decontamination Techniques

What are effective decontamination techniques for N95 reuse?

In situations where there is shortage of filtering facepiece respirators (FFR), we suggest the use of Hydrogen Peroxide Vapor (HPV), Ultraviolet Germicidal Irradiation (UVGI), moist heat and peracetic acid dry fogging system (PAF) as options for N95 mask decontamination as recommended by the manufacturer based on their ability to reduce SARS-COV-2 load and infectivity while still maintaining N95 mask integrity. (Low quality of evidence; Conditional recommendation)

We recommend against the use of autoclave and alcohol as these methods alter filtering facepiece respirator's (N95) integrity and degrade filtration efficacy. (Very low quality of evidence; Strong recommendation)

Living Recommendations on Vaccines and Prophylactic Interventions for COVID-19

Vaccines

Are vaccines effective and safe in the prevention of COVID-19 infections?

We recommend the use of the following vaccines to prevent symptomatic SARS-CoV-2 infection among adults: (Moderate quality of evidence; Strong recommendation)

- a. BNT162b2 (given as 0.3ml (30ug) intramuscular injections, in 2 doses, 21 days apart)
- b. mRNA-1273 (given as 0.5ml (100ug) intramuscular injections, in 2 doses, 28 days apart)
- c. ChAd0x1 (given as 0.5 ml (5×10^6 vp) intramuscular injections, in 2 doses, at least 12 weeks apart)
- d. Gam-COVID-Vac (given as 0.5ml rAd-26S 0.5ml intramuscular injection, then rAd-5S 0.5ml intramuscular injection 21 days after)

We recommend the use of these vaccines in older adults (>64-year-old) to prevent symptomatic SARS-CoV-2 Infection. (Low quality of evidence; Strong recommendation)

We recommend the use of these vaccines in pregnant and lactating women after consultation with their healthcare provider. (Very low quality of evidence; Conditional recommendation)

We recommend the use of these vaccines in adults who have stable medical comorbidities and are at risk for severe infection to prevent SARS-CoV-2 infection. (Moderate quality of evidence; Strong recommendation)

We recommend against the use of these vaccines in children to prevent SARS-CoV-2 infection: (Low to very low quality of evidence; Conditional recommendation)

- BNT162b2: <16 years old
- mRNA-1273, ChAdOx1, Gam-COVID-Vac: <18 years old

We recommend the use of these vaccines in immunocompromised patients (i.e., diagnosed with HIV, hepatitis B and C), after clearance from their physician, to prevent SARS-CoV-2 infections. *(Low quality of evidence; Conditional recommendation)*

We recommend against the use of these vaccines in persons with known allergies to polysorbate and/or PEG. (Moderate to high quality of evidence; Strong recommendation)

Melatonin

Should melatonin be used in the prevention of COVID-19 infection?

We recommend against the use of melatonin as prevention for COVID-19 infection. (*Very low quality of evidence; Strong recommendation*)

Vitamin D

Should Vitamin D supplementation be used in the prevention of COVID-19 infection?

We recommend against the use of Vitamin D supplementation to prevent COVID-19 infection. (Very low quality of evidence; Strong recommendation)

Zinc

Should zinc supplementation be used in the prevention of COVID-19 infection?

We recommend against the use of zinc supplementation to prevent COVID-19 infection. (*Very low quality of evidence; Strong recommendation*)

Hydroxychloroquine/Chloroquine

Should hydroxychloroquine/chloroquine be used in the prevention of COVID-19?

We recommend against the use of HCQ for pre-exposure prophylaxis in adults who are at high risk of exposure to COVID-19 cases. *(Moderate quality of evidence; Strong recommendation)*

We recommend against the use of HCQ for post-exposure prophylaxis in adults who are exposed to COVID-19 cases. (Low quality of evidence; Strong recommendation)

Lopinavir/Ritonavir

Should lopinavir/ritonavir be used as prophylaxis for the prevention of COVID-19?

We recommend against the use of lopinavir/ritonavir for chemoprophylaxis in individuals exposed to COVID-19 patients. (*Very low quality of evidence; Strong recommendation*)

Saline Nasal Irrigation

Should saline nasal irrigation be used for the prevention of COVID-19?

There is insufficient evidence to recommend the use of saline nasal irrigation (SNI) to prevent COVID-19 in healthy individuals. (*Very low quality of evidence*)

Steam Inhalation

Should steam inhalation be used for the prevention of COVID-19?

We recommend against the use of steam inhalation in the prevention of COVID-19. (Very low quality of evidence; Strong recommendation)

We recommend against the use of steam inhalation in the treatment of COVID-19. (Very low quality of evidence; Strong recommendation)

Antiseptic Gargles

Should antiseptic gargles be used for the prevention of COVID-19?

There is insufficient evidence to recommend the use of antiseptic mouthwash or gargle to prevent COVID-19 in healthy individuals. (*Very low quality of evidence*)

Living Recommendations on Adjunct Interventions for COVID-19

Zinc

Should zinc be given as an adjunct treatment to patients diagnosed with COVID-19 infection?

There is insufficient evidence to recommend the use of zinc as adjunct treatment for patients with COVID-19 infection both in the outpatient and in-patient setting. (Very low quality of evidence)

Vitamin C

Should Vitamin C be used as adjunct treatment for COVID-19?

There is insufficient evidence to recommend the use of intravenous Vitamin C as adjunct treatment for patients with COVID-19 infection. *(Low quality of evidence)*

Vitamin D

Should Vitamin D supplements be used as adjunct treatment for COVID-19?

There is insufficient evidence to recommend the use of Vitamin D supplementation as adjunct treatment for patients with COVID-19 infection. (Low to very low quality of evidence)

Melatonin

Should melatonin be used in the adjunctive treatment of COVID-19?

There is insufficient evidence to recommend the use of melatonin as adjunct treatment for patients with COVID-19 infection. (Very low quality of evidence)

Virgin Coconut Oil

Should virgin coconut oil be used in the adjunctive treatment of COVID-19?

There is no evidence to recommend the use of virgin coconut oil as adjunct treatment for patients with COVID-19 infection.

N-acetylcysteine

Should N-acetylcysteine be used as an adjunct treatment for patients diagnosed with COVID-19?

We recommend against the use of intravenous N-acetylcysteine as adjunct treatment for patients with COVID-19 infection. (Moderate quality of evidence; Strong recommendation)

Renin-Angiotensin-Aldosterone System Blockers (RAAS)

Should RAAS blockers be continued in patients with COVID-19?

We recommend continuing maintenance RAAS blockers for hypertension among patients with COVID-19 infection. *(Moderate quality of evidence; Strong recommendation)*

Ibuprofen

Does the concurrent use of Ibuprofen worsen COVID-19 outcomes?

We suggest that ibuprofen may still be used as symptomatic treatment of patients with COVID-19 infection if clinically warranted. Concurrent use of ibuprofen is not associated with worsening of COVID-19 outcomes. (Very low quality of evidence; Conditional recommendation)